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Sunnyside

Florence

Private circa 1800

Sunnyside faces north on the southeast corner of Florence Road and Route

94, It is a truly eclectic building, blending elements of the Greek Revival
Style in its pedimented wooden lintels, flat pilasters and flat roofed, doric
columned, open porch with the Roman Revival Style, which filtered down to
American mid-nineteenth century domestic architecture in the form of small
roman arched attic windows inset into central intersecting, front gables, as
well as the attic side elevations. Such a window was placed on the fromt
facade of the mid-ninteenth century central section, which is now hidden,

with this stylistic detail incorporated into the new front facade, in its inter-
secting central gable, and in two roman arched attic windows on both the east
and west elevations. 1In addition, the shingle style is represented in the
gothic cut shingles of the third floor addition to the two story high, mid-
nineteenth century central section of the house and in the gothic cut shingles
of the third floor of the three story high, late nineteenth century, front
section of the house. All of this extends from the north wall of the original
log structure, constructed circa 1800.

The original log house is a two bay wide, one room deep, two story high, gabled
roof (running north-south) log (now covered aluminum siding) house, resting on
a stone (covered with cement) foundation, with square, brick chimney inset into
its south wall.

The log building was constructed by Joshua Warfield, son of captain Benjamin
Warfield of Cherry Grove, while the mid section, circa 1830, was built by Albert
Gallatin Warfield and the 1890 front: section of the house, by his son, Joshua
Warfield.
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Sunnyside faces north on the southeast corner of Florence Road

and Route 94. It is a truly eclectic building, blending elements of the
Greek Revival Style in its pedimented wooden lintels, flat pilasters and

flat roofed, doric columned, open porch with the Roman Revival Style, which
filtered down to American mid-nineteenth century domestic architecture

in the form of small roman arched attic windows inset into central intersecting,
front gables, as well asthe attic side elevations. Such a window was placed
on the front facade of the mid-ninteenth century central section, which is
now hidden, with this stylistic detail incorporated into the new front
facade, in its intersecting central gable, and in two roman arched attic
windows on both the east and west elevations. |In addition, the shingle style
is represented in the gothic cut shingles of the third floor addition to

the two story high, mid-nineteenth century central section of the house and

in the gothic cut shingles of the third floor of the three story high, late
nineteenth century, front section of the house. All of this extends from the
north wall of the original log structure, constructed circa 1800.

The original log house is a two bay wide, one room deep, two
story high, gabled roof (running north-south) log (now covered aluminum
siding) house, resting on a stone (covered with cement) foundation, with
square, brick chimney inset into its south wall. Fenestration for the house
has been altered to accommodate a new interior plan incorporating a downstairs
kitchen unit and upstairs bath. Two horizontal rectangular, one light
basement windows are inset into the west elevation beneath vertically
aligned first and second floor rectangular windows and another similar
basement window is located in the east wall.

A nine light, rectangular, St. Andrew's cross paneled basement
entrance rests in the south wall,as well as a similiar first floor entrance.
Six poured-in-place concrete steps, flanked by boxwood, lead to this entrance.
Above rest two rectangular, six-over-six light second floor windows. To
the north wall of this original early nineteenth century log house was
added an''L'' shaped, two story high,intersecting gabled roof addition,
which features a wide, corbeled brick south chimney, a two story high,
shed roofed open porch running along its entire east elevation and a rec-
tangular east entrance, surmounted by a three light transom. To this mid
section was later added a shingled third floor when the three story high,
front section of the building was added.

This latter section is a three bay wide, one room deep,
three and a half story high, intersecting gabled roof (running east-west)
frame covered with aluminum siding with third floor shingles) building,
resting on a stone foundation (covered with cement), with a wide brick

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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chimney inset into its west wall and another into the east side of its south

wall. 1t features a two story high, east bay window and central intersecting

gable (running north—south) holding a four light attic roman window and two others <§et
into its east and west elevations, which match,

Fenestration for the house is otherwise almost entirely vertically
aligned, proportionally scaled, rectangular, and double-hung, holding
six-over-six lights, flanked by flat pilasters, surmounted with pedimented

lintels and decorated with shutters. The north elevation features the central,
rectangular, fifteen light entrance door, flanked by five vertical side lights
-and surmounted by a four light transom and flat wooden lintel. Dark green
shutters decorate this entrance, as well as the ten-ten light french doors
surmounted by two-two light transoms-and also decorated with shutters,

which flank the central entrance. All three doors lead to a brick landing
which runs along the entire north and west elevations of this section

of the house, covered by a one story high flat roof, supported by eight

doric columns. The two first floor windows on the west elevation and the
three north entrances are all surmounted by flat lintels, rather than the
pedimented lintels decorating most of the building's windows, which

has already been mentioned.

Two wide north, brick steps lead from the open porch to a tree
shaded lawn which leads to an avenue of cedars, flanking the north
entrance to the property. Another two, wide brick steps on the east
lead to a brick patio, the north section of which is covered by a wooden
trellis, supported by one square and three doricposts. This patio
runs along the entire east elevation of the house, with a curmilinear brick
path leading from it to another brick swimming pool terrace, east of the house.

The bay window on the east wall of the late nineteenth century section of

the house holds a central first floor, twenty-four light picture window ,
flanked by flat pilasters, surmounted by a flat lintel and underlined by a
projecting wooden sill. A four light basement window rests in the stone
foundation of this mid-section of the bay window, while a double window,

each component a rectangular, double-bung window, holding four-over-four
lights, flanked and separated by flat pilasters, underlined by a flat sill,
with the entire double window surmounted by a pedimented lintel, decorated
with molding, is placed in the second floor, above the picture window.
Similar second floor, single windows, are placed on the flanking sides of the
bay with very wide rectangular, six-over-xix light first floor windows
below.

A frame, éébled roof smoke house lies east of the building's log
section with several auxiliary buildings connected to its south wall.
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One further, two story high, shed roofed bath room addition
has been added to the mid-nineteen century section's west wall.

INTERIOR

The interior of the log house features joists, supporting log joists supporting
the wide, random width floors boards of the house and a very large, wide
stone fireplace, which retains its original crane for cooking. Other than
these two features, nothing else can be seen, for the house has been
completely modernized and paneled for use as an apartment with kitchen
living room downstairs, bedroom-bath upstairs and charming den in the
basement. An enclosed staircase originally was constructed along the
building's north wall. This has been replaced by a modern, circular
staircase located in the northwest corner of the building which
creates a vertical focal point, as well as additional space.

The interior plan of the front and mid sections are very
interesting in the manner in which they have b-en incorporated.
The mid section was constructed in an 'L'" plan in the mid nineteenth
century and featured a central hall and staircase with a south kitchen
wing.

Near the close of the century, Joshua Warfield added still
another front section to the house, creating a large central entrance
hall leading back to the original staircase, with large living
room and dining room on either side.

The small log house-apartment can be totally separated from the
main house and has separate water and heat, although a passage from one
to the other exists. This passage holds an interesting space replete with
pulleys, resting in the west wall for the dumb waiter, which brought
the food prepared downstairs up to the first floor.

Original cross paneled doors are featured throughout the house
along with interesting interior transoms over second floor doors in the
front section of the house. Random width floors are an additional feature,
as well as the fine curvilinear spindles of the staircase leading from
the first to the third floors.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Sunnyside is architecturally significant to Howard County and the State
of Maryland as an example of American eclectic architecture, blending early
nineteenth century vernacular log architecture with styles as they filter down
to mid-nineteenth century domestic American architecture.

In addition, Sunnyside is associated with the prominent Warfield family
of Cherry Grove with its present owner, Mr. Albert Gallatn Warfield, III a
direct descendant of Richard Warfield, who came from the area around Windsor,
England to America in 1662. Born in 1622, he was almost forty when he arrived
in America and is noted as serving as one of the first vestrymen of St. Anne's
Episcopal Church in Annapolis in 1690. The family history of the Warfields is
well covered in J.D. Warfield's book The History of Anne Arundel and Howard
Counties, Maryland. The owners and later occupants of Sunnvside have all been
directly related to Richard, who came from England, known as the settler,
who married Elinor Brown, heiress of Captain John Brown of London in 1670.

In his oldage Richard Warfield began the early settlement of unexplored
Howard County. His eldest son John (1674-1718) lived on '"Warfields Plains"
and in 1696 married Ruth Gaither, oldest daughter of John Gaither, of South
River. Their third son, Benjamin was one of six sons who settled in Howard
County three of these brothers, John, Benjamin and Alexander were granted ad-
joining tracts upon" Warfields Range. Benjamin Warfield (1702-1762) married
Rebeckah Ridgely and was a vestry man of Queen Caroline Parish. His oldest
son, also named Benjamin, (1734-1801) built and 1lived at HO-1, Cherry Grove
in 1768 and ten years later was commissioned Captain in the Elk Ridge Bat-
talion. He married Catharine, daughter of Captain Philcmon Dcrsey. Their
youngest son, Joshua Warfield (1781-1846) married Rachel Welsh first and later
Lydia Welsh. It is believed by family members that through marriage the tract
of land on which Sunnyside stands, once owned by the Warfields, was again
brought back into the family and that the log section of the house was con-
structed by him,although he never lived there,but made his residence at Cherry
Grove. Joshua and his second wife had a son Albert Gallatin Warfield (1817-
1891) , who built the original section of Oakdale in 1838. Albert Gallatin
Warfield married Margaret Gassaway Watkins, daughter of Colonel Gassaway
Watkins, famous for his role in the Revolution. Together they raised ten .
children,among whom was Governor of Maryland, Edwin Warfield. Not only did Albert
and Margaret own Cherry Grove,but Sunnyside also was owned by them.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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It was they who added the mid-section of the house as a residence for one of
their sons, Joshua Warfield. Before going on to speak of Joshua, we should
dwell just a bit longer on Albert Gallatin Warfield, who choose a woman of
quality, born at Walnut Grove, one of Howard County's finest old homes. She
has been described as a "woman of lovely Christian character,”" who "made her
home one of the most beautiful and attractive in the county, where her children
grand children and friends loved to meet and enjoy her sweet presence.'" Her
husband too, was well beloved and admired and, with her, put family concerns
first, never accepting a public office, though often solicited. In 1869 he
did however ,make an exception, Serving as president of the county school
board. Honored, respected, and loved by all who knew him,as was his wife
Margaret, he was described as a '"cultivated, refined and courteous gentle-

man of the old school, who dispensed at his beautiful home a generous hospi-
tality." He had inherited a large number of slaves and was one of the largest
slave-owners of his section of the State. He was noted as an indulgent master,
who manumitted his slaves as they reached the age of forty, believing slavery
to be inconsistent with republican institutions.

In spite of these opinions, two of his sons, Gassaway Watkins Warfield
and Albert G. Warfield, served the Confederacy with honor, distinction, and
courage. Both were captured and interred at Camp Chase. Planning to escape
together, Albert succeeded but Gassaway was left behind due to sickness. A
letter, written by the Commandant of the prison, is still in possession of
the family, in which he states that he will free Gassaway Warfield if he will
swear allegiance to the Union. This, Gassaway could not and would not do and
died at Camp Chase in 1864,

His brother, Albert G. Warfield, Jr. remained an adventurous spirit and
in 1873 went to Japan as a well-known civil engineer, who initiated work there
on the railroads, for which Japan is so noted today.

Both these brothers are commemorated by the Confederate Monument in front
of the Howard County Court House on which their names are placed.

A third brother, Edwin Warfield became Governor of Maryland, while another,
John Warfield became a member of the Baltimore Bar and editor of the '"Daily
Record.”" Two other brothers Marshall T. and Joshua N. were leading farmers of
the county. Marshall T. Built Wakefield, while Joshua lived at Sunnyside.

At this juncture we return to Joshua, who has been described by members of
the family as a "wheeler-dealer," a big, robust sort of man, who had an ability
to "buy and sell". - NI '

In the traditions of the early settlers of Howard County, he was given an
area of the family holdings and an old log house was enlarged and modified for
his use, but in the tradition of his family, he was a good stewart, who put
to good use that which was given to him.
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He very early recycled garbage and waste, utilizing as fertilzer for his farm
and tenant farms,that collected from a contract, which he earned for such
collections in Washington, D.C..In addition, "0ld Clint Johnson'’, who drove the
wagon into Washington, would carry corn in and bring back the collections,
dropping them off tc tenant farms along the way. Joshua also formed a Title
Company, which bought up all these farms. He was generally known as a very
successful "entrepeneur". It is probable that he constructed the third sec-
tion of Sunnyside circa 1880 and that his son, Norman, who also lived at
Sunnyside, later added the front porch. Norman Warfield was appraiser for
the Federal Land Bank and is described very much like his grand father Albert
Gallatin Warfield, as a soft-spoken; gentlemanly man, and congenial,

Norman Warfield died in 1955 and willed Sunnyside to his cousin, Albert
Gallatin Warfield III, an Assistant States Attorney for Howard County, Maryland, andther
direct descendant of Albert Gallatin and Margaret Gassaway Watkins Warfield,
who stemed from and produced some of Howard County's most illustrious sons
and daughters, azmong them a Governor of Maryland.

For these reasons, Sunnyside should be considered for inclusion in the
-National Register of Historic Places, the State Critical Areas Program and
any future local landmark ordinance, should its owners so desire.

—
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Hopkin's Atlas of 1878
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